BOILERMECH HOLDINGS BERHAD

Registration No. 201001013463 (897694-T) (Incorporated In Malaysia)

Minutes of the 12th Annual General Meeting of Boilermech Holdings Berhad held at Zamrud Room, The Saujana Hotel Kuala Lumpur, Saujana Resort, Jalan Lapangan Terbang SAAS, 40150 Shah Alam, Selangor Darul Ehsan on Friday, 26 August 2022 at 10.00 a.m.

PRESENT : As per Attendance List

IN ATTENDANCE : Ms. Tan Bee Hwee – Company Secretary

<u>ACTION</u>

1. CHAIRMAN

Dr Chia Song Kun presided as Chairman ("Dr Chairman") of the meeting and welcomed all present to the 12th Annual General Meeting ("AGM") of Boilermech Holdings Berhad ("Boilermech" or "the Company").

2. QUORUM

- 2.1 The Secretary confirmed that a quorum was present for the meeting pursuant to Clause 56 of the Company's Constitution.
- 2.2 The Secretary further informed that 12 valid proxy forms were received within the prescribed period for the 12th AGM, which represented a total of 5,823,300 shares or 1.13% of the issued and paid-up share capital of the Company.
- 2.3 With the requisite quorum being present, Dr Chairman declared the meeting duly convened at 10.00 a.m.

3. NOTICE

The notice of meeting having been circulated earlier was taken as read.

4. CORPORATE VIDEO

Following the introduction of Board members by Dr Chairman, a corporate video was presented at the Meeting.

5. SLIDE PRESENTATION ON THE COMPANY'S DEVELOPMENT/ RESPONSES TO MINORITY SHAREHOLDERS WATCH GROUP'S QUESTIONS

Dr Chairman then invited Mr Chia Lik Khai, the Joint Managing Director ("Joint MD") of Boilermech to deliver a presentation on the corporate and operational developments. Mr Chia Lik Khai presented an update on the corporate and operational developments of the Group, among others, performance review, key developments, businesses to support environmental sustainability, financial achievement for FYE2022 and overall outlook for FYE2023.

5.2 <u>Minority Shareholders Watch Group's ("MSWG") Questions</u>

Dr Chairman informed the Meeting that the Board had received written questions from the MSWG prior to the Meeting.

MSWG's questions were projected on the screen for the Meeting's viewing. The Joint MD then read out the Company's responses to the questions of MSWG, except for Question 6 which was related to the Joint MD.

At this juncture, Mr Adrian Chair Yong Huang, being the Chairman of the Nomination Committee, was invited by the Joint MD to read out the answer from the Board on Question 6. Details of MSWG's questions and answers are attached herewith and marked as Appendix 1.

- 5.3 Dr Chairman thanked Mr Chia Lik Khai and Mr Adrian Chair Yong Huang. He welcomed questions from the floor on matters in relation to the corporate and operational matters as well as the Company's responses to MSWG's questions.
- 5.4 The questions and answers raised by MSWG's representative and shareholders at the Meeting are also set out in Appendix 1.

6. PROCEEDINGS OF THE AGM AND VOTING PROCEEDINGS

- 6.1 Dr Chairman proceeded to inform the Meeting on the proceedings of the 12th AGM and voting proceedings. He explained that in line with Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad's Listing Requirements, voting for all the resolutions to be tabled at the 12th AGM would be conducted by way of poll.
- 6.2 To facilitate the Meeting, the poll voting for all the resolutions tabled was conducted at the end of the meeting after all the resolutions as set out in the Agenda had been duly tabled.

- 7. TO RECEIVE THE STATUTORY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND REPORTS OF THE DIRECTORS AND AUDITORS THEREON FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED ("FYE") 31 MARCH 2022
- 7.1 Dr Chairman welcomed questions from the floor in regards to the Statutory Financial Statements and Reports for FYE 31 March 2022.
- 7.2 Questions raised by the shareholders on the Statutory Financial Statements and Reports for FYE 31 March 2022 are set out in Appendix 1 of these minutes. The said Financial Statements were not put forward for voting as the provision of Sections 248(2) and 340(1)(a) of the Companies Act 2016 does not require the formal approval from the shareholders.
- 7.3 Dr Chairman declared the Statutory Financial Statements of the Company and the Group for the financial year ended 31 March 2022 together with the Reports of the Directors and Auditors thereon as properly laid and received.
- 8. TO APPROVE THE PAYMENT OF A FINAL SINGLE TIER DIVIDEND OF 1.75 SEN PER ORDINARY SHARE AMOUNTING TO RM9,030,000 FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022
- 8.1 Dr Chairman tabled Ordinary Resolution 1 on the agenda pertaining to the approval for payment of a final single tier dividend of 1.75 sen per ordinary share amounting to RM9,030,000 for the financial year ended 31 March 2022.
- 8.2 There were no questions raised from the shareholders or proxy holders on the proposed motion. Based on the poll results, it was RESOLVED:-
 - "THAT the payment of a final single tier dividend of 1.75 sen per ordinary share amounting to RM9,030,000 for the financial year ended 31 March 2022 be and is hereby approved for payment."
- 9. TO RE-ELECT THE FOLLOWING DIRECTORS WHO RETIRED PURSUANT TO THE COMPANY'S CONSTITUTION AND BEING ELIGIBLE, HAVE OFFERED THEMSELVES FOR RE-ELECTION
- 9.1 Re-election of Mr Ho Cheok Yuen
- 9.1.1 Dr Chairman tabled Ordinary Resolution 2 on the agenda pertaining to the re-election of Ho Cheok Yuen, who was retiring pursuant to Clause 76(3) of the Constitution of the Company and being eligible, had offered himself for re-election.
- 9.1.2 There were no questions raised from the shareholders or proxy holders on the proposed motion. Based on the poll results, it was RESOLVED:-
 - "THAT Mr Ho Cheok Yuen retiring pursuant to Clause 76(3) of the Constitution of the Company be and is hereby re-elected as a Director of the Company."

9.2 Re-election of Mr Adrian Chair Yong Huang

- 9.2.1 Dr Chairman tabled Ordinary Resolution 3 on the agenda pertaining to the re-election of Adrian Chair Yong Huang, who was retiring pursuant to Clause 76(3) of the Constitution of the Company and being eligible, had offered himself for re-election.
- 9.2.2 There were no questions raised from the shareholders or proxy holders on the proposed motion. Based on the poll results, it was RESOLVED:-

"THAT Mr Adrian Chair Yong Huang retiring pursuant to Clause 76(3) of the Constitution of the Company be and is hereby re-elected as a Director of the Company."

9.3 Re-election of Mr Gan Chih Soon

- 9.3.1 Dr Chairman tabled Ordinary Resolution 4 on the agenda pertaining to the re-election of Gan Chih Soon, who was retiring pursuant to Clause 76(3) of the Constitution of the Company and being eligible, had offered himself for re-election.
- 9.3.2 There were no questions raised from the shareholders or proxy holders on the proposed motion. Based on the poll results, it was RESOLVED:-

"THAT Mr Gan Chih Soon retiring pursuant to Clause 76(3) of the Constitution of the Company be and is hereby re-elected as a Director of the Company."

- 10. TO APPROVE THE PAYMENT OF DIRECTORS' FEES OF THE FOLLOWING DIRECTORS FOR THE PERIOD COMMENCING FROM THE CONCLUSION OF THE 12TH AGM UNTIL THE NEXT AGM OF THE COMPANY
- 10.1 Director's Fee of Dr Chia Song Kun amounting to RM9,000 per
- 10.1.1 Dr Chairman tabled Ordinary Resolution 5 on the agenda pertaining to the approval of payment of Director's Fee amounting to RM9,000 per month to him for the period commencing from the conclusion of 12th AGM until the next AGM of the Company. Mr Ng Swee Weng took the chair as Dr Chairman was deemed interested in the proposed resolution.
- 10.1.2 There were no questions raised from the shareholders on the above proposed motion. Based on the poll results, it was RESOLVED:-

"THAT the Director' fee amounting to RM9,000 per month to Dr Chia Song Kun for the period commencing from the conclusion of 12th AGM until the next AGM of the Company be and is hereby approved for payment."

10.1.3 Mr Ng Swee Weng handed the Chair back to Dr Chia Song Kun to proceed with the next Agenda item as set out in the Notice of the 12th AGM.

10.2 Director's Fee of Mr Ng Swee Weng amounting to RM8,000 per month

- 10.2.1 Dr Chairman tabled Ordinary Resolution 6 on the agenda pertaining to the approval of payment of Director's Fee amounting to RM8,000 per month to Mr Ng Swee Weng for the period commencing from the conclusion of 12th AGM until the next AGM of the Company.
- 10.2.2 There were no questions raised from the shareholders on the proposed motion. Based on the poll results, it was RESOLVED:-

"THAT the Director' fee amounting to RM8,000 per month to Mr Ng Swee Weng for the period commencing from the conclusion of 12th AGM until the next AGM of the Company be and is hereby approved for payment."

He proceeded to the next agenda item as set out in the Notice of the 12th AGM.

- 10.3 Director's Fee of Mr Adrian Chair Yong Huang amounting to RM7,000 per month
- 10.3.1 Dr Chairman tabled Ordinary Resolution 7 on the agenda pertaining to the approval of payment of Director's Fee amounting to RM7,000 per month to Mr Adrian Chair Yong Huang for the period commencing from the conclusion of 12th AGM until the next AGM of the Company.
- 10.3.2 There were no questions raised from the shareholders on the proposed motion. Based on the poll results, it was RESOLVED:-

"THAT the Director' fee amounting to RM7,000 per month to Mr Adrian Chair Yong Huang for the period commencing from the conclusion of 12th AGM until the next AGM of the Company be and is hereby approved for payment."

He proceeded to the next agenda item as set out in the Notice of the 12th AGM.

- 10.4 Director's Fee of Mr Ho Cheok Yuen amounting to SGD2,500 and Board Committee's Fee of RM1,000 per month
- 10.4.1 Dr Chairman tabled Ordinary Resolution 8 on the agenda pertaining to the approval of payment of Director's Fee amounting to SGD2,500 and Board Committee's fee of RM1,000 per month to Mr Ho Cheok Yuen for the period commencing from the conclusion of 12th AGM until the next AGM of the Company.
- 10.4.2 There were no questions raised from the shareholders on the proposed motion. Based on the poll results, it was RESOLVED:-

"THAT the Director' fee amounting to SGD2,500 and Board Committee's fee of RM1,000 per month to Mr Ho Cheok Yuen for the period commencing from the conclusion of 12th AGM until the next AGM of the Company be and is hereby approved for payment."

He proceeded to the next agenda item as set out in the Notice of the 12th AGM.

10.5 Director's Fee of Cik Rina Meileene Binti Adam amounting to RM7,000 per month

- 10.5.1 Dr Chairman tabled Ordinary Resolution 9 on the agenda pertaining to the approval of payment of Director's Fee amounting to RM7,000 per month to Cik Rina Meileene Binti Adam for the period commencing from the conclusion of 12th AGM until the next AGM of the Company.
- 10.5.2 There were no questions raised from the shareholders of the proposed motion. Based on the poll results, it was RESOLVED:-

"THAT the Director' fee amounting to RM7,000 per month to Cik Rina Meileene Binti Adam for the period commencing from the conclusion of 12th AGM until the next AGM of the Company be and is hereby approved for payment."

He proceeded to the next agenda item as set out in the Notice of the 12th AGM.

- 10.6 Director's Fee of Mr Chia Seong Fatt amounting to RM3,000 per month
- 10.6.1 Dr Chairman tabled Ordinary Resolution 10 on the agenda pertaining to the approval of payment of Director's Fee amounting to RM3,000 per month to Mr Chia Seong Fatt for the period commencing from the conclusion of 12th AGM until the next AGM of the Company.
- 10.6.2 There were no questions raised from the shareholders on the proposed motion. Based on the poll results, it was RESOLVED:-

"THAT the Director' fee amounting to RM3,000 per month to Mr Chia Seong Fatt for the period commencing from the conclusion of 12th AGM until the next AGM of the Company be and is hereby approved for payment."

He proceeded to the next agenda item as set out in the Notice of the 12th AGM.

- 11. TO APPROVE DIRECTORS' BENEFITS FOR THE NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS OF THE COMPANY FOR THE PERIOD COMMENCING FROM THE CONCLUSION OF THE 12TH AGM UNTIL THE NEXT AGM OF THE COMPANY
- 11.1 Dr Chairman informed that Ordinary Resolution 11 was to approve the payment of Director's benefits comprising meeting allowances of RM2,000 per Malaysian Non-Executive Director ("NED") and SGD1,800 per Singaporean NED per meeting day for the period commencing from the conclusion of the 12th AGM until the next AGM of the Company.
- 11.2 There were no questions raised from the shareholders on the above proposed motion. Based on the poll results, it was RESOLVED:-

"THAT the payment of meeting allowance of RM2,000 per Malaysian Non-Executive Director and SGD1,800 per Singaporean Non-Executive Director per meeting day for the period commencing from the conclusion of the 12th AGM until the next AGM of the Company be hereby approved."

12. TO RE-APPOINT KPMG PLT AS AUDITORS OF THE COMPANY AND TO AUTHORISE THE DIRECTORS TO FIX THEIR REMUNERATION

- 12.1 Dr Chairman referred to Ordinary Resolution 12 on the Agenda pertaining to the re-appointment of KPMG PLT as Auditors of the Company and to authorise the Directors to fix their remuneration.
- 12.2 There were no questions raised from the shareholders on the proposed motion. Based on the poll results, it was RESOLVED:-

"THAT KPMG PLT be and are hereby re-appointed as Auditors of the Company at a fee to be agreed upon with the Directors of the Company and they shall hold office until the conclusion of the next Annual General Meeting."

SPECIAL BUSINESS:

ORDINARY RESOLUTION 13

- 13. AUTHORITY TO ISSUE AND ALLOT SHARES PURSUANT TO SECTIONS 75 AND 76 OF THE COMPANIES ACT 2016
- 13.1 Dr Chairman tabled Ordinary Resolution 13, under Special Business of the agenda in respect of the authority to issue shares pursuant to Sections 75 and 76 of the Companies Act 2016.
- 13.2 There were no questions raised from the shareholders on the proposed motion. Based on the poll results, it was RESOLVED:-

"THAT, subject to the Companies Act 2016, the Constitution of the Company and the approvals from Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad and other relevant government/regulatory authorities, where such approval is necessary, the Directors be and are hereby empowered pursuant to Sections 75 and 76 of the Companies Act 2016 to issue and allot shares in the Company, from time to time and upon such terms and conditions and for such purposes and to such persons whomsoever the Directors may, in their absolute discretion deem fit and expedient in the interest of the Company, provided that the aggregate number of shares issued pursuant to this resolution does not exceed 10% of the total number of the issued shares (excluding treasury shares) for the time being AND THAT the Directors of the Company be and are hereby empowered to obtain the approval for the listing of and quotation for the additional shares so issued on Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad AND FURTHER THAT such authority shall continue in force until the conclusion of the next Annual General Meeting of the Company."

14. PROPOSED RENEWAL OF SHAREHOLDERS' MANDATE FOR RECURRENT RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS OF A REVENUE OR TRADING NATURE

- 14.1 As Dr Chairman was an interested party in the above proposed motion, he proposed that Mr Ng Swee Weng took over the Chairmanship in the tabling of the above motion. With no objections raised by the shareholders, Mr Ng Swee Weng took over the Chair and tabled the above motion for shareholders' approval.
- 14.2 Mr Ng Swee Weng referred to Ordinary Resolution 14, under Special Business of the agenda in respect of the proposed renewal of shareholders' mandate for recurrent related party transactions of a revenue or trading nature.
- 14.3 It was highlighted that the Interested Directors Dr Chia Song Kun, Mr Chia Lik Khai, Mr Chia Seong Fatt and Mr Yong Hua Kong and the Interested Major Shareholders QL Resources Berhad, QL Green Resources Sdn Bhd, CBG (L) Foundation, CBG (L) Pte. Ltd., Dr Chia Song Kun and persons connected to them would abstain from voting and deliberation on the above motion.
- 14.4 There were no questions raised from the shareholders on the proposed motion. Based on the poll results, it was RESOLVED:-
 - "THAT subject to the Listing Requirements of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad ("Bursa Securities"), approval be and is hereby given to the Company and its subsidiary(ies) to enter into recurrent related party transactions of a revenue or trading nature with the related parties ("Recurrent Related Party Transactions") as set out in Section 2.2 of the Circular to the Shareholders dated 25 July 2022 ("the Circular"), subject further to the following:
 - (i) the Recurrent Related Party Transactions are entered into in the ordinary course of business on terms not more favourable to the related parties than those generally available to the public, and the Recurrent Related Party Transactions are undertaken on arms' length basis and are not to the detriment of the minority shareholders of the Company;
 - (ii) the disclosure is made in the annual report of the breakdown of the aggregate value of the Recurrent Related Party Transactions conducted pursuant to the shareholders' mandate during the financial year, amongst others, based on the following information:
 - (a) the type of Recurrent Related Party Transactions made; and
 - (b) the names of the related parties involved in each type of Recurrent Related Party Transaction made and their relationship with the Company;
 - (iii) the shareholders' mandate is subject to annual renewal and this shareholders' mandate shall only continue to be in full force until:
 - (a) the conclusion of the next Annual General Meeting ("AGM") of the Company following this AGM, at which this shareholders' mandate will lapse, unless by a resolution passed at the said AGM, such authority is renewed;

- (b) the expiration of the period within which the next AGM is required to be held pursuant to Section 340(2) of the Companies Act 2016 ("Act") (but shall not extend to such extension as may be allowed pursuant to Section 340(4) of the Act); or
- (c) revoked or varied by resolution passed by the shareholders in general meeting;

whichever is the earlier:

AND THAT the Directors and/or any of them be and are hereby authorised to complete and do all such acts and things as they may consider expedient or necessary (including executing such documents as may be required) to give effect to the Recurrent Related Party Transactions contemplated and/or authorised by this Ordinary Resolution:

AND THAT, the estimates given of the Recurrent Related Party Transactions specified in Section 2.2 of the Circular being provisional in nature, the Directors and/or any of them be and are hereby authorised to agree to the actual amount or amounts thereof provided always that such amount or amounts comply with the procedures set out in Section 2.4 of the Circular."

14.5 Mr Ng Swee Weng then handed the Chair back to Dr Chia Song Kun to proceed with the next Agenda item as set out in the Notice of the 12th AGM.

15. TO TRANSACT ANY OTHER BUSINESS OF WHICH DUE NOTICE SHALL BEEN GIVEN IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE COMPANIES ACT 2016

Dr Chairman informed that the Company had not received any notice to deal with any other business for which due notice was required to be given, pursuant to the Companies Act 2016.

16. CONDUCT OF POLL

The Meeting was adjourned at 12.00 p.m. for the poll and was reconvened at 12.30 p.m. after the votes had been counted and verified by the Official Scrutineers, Coopers Professional Scrutineers Sdn Bhd.

17. ANNOUNCEMENT OF POLL RESULTS

17.1 Dr Chairman thanked the shareholders for staying back for the poll results. He then announced the poll results.

17.2 Based on the poll results duly verified by the Scrutineer for the respective resolutions, Dr Chairman announced that all the resolutions tabled at the Company's 12th AGM were approved by the shareholders and proxies present, and he declared all the following resolutions carried:

	Vote	For	Vote A	Vote Against		
Resolution(s)	No. of Units	%	No. of Units	%	Results	
Ordinary Resolution 1	80,250,204	99.9999	100	0.0001	Carried	
Ordinary Resolution 2	80,250,304	100.0000	0	0.0000	Carried	
Ordinary Resolution 3	80,250,304	100.0000	0	0.0000	Carried	
Ordinary Resolution 4	80,250,304	100.0000	0	0.0000	Carried	
Ordinary Resolution 5	79,150,104	99.9997	200	0.0003	Carried	
Ordinary Resolution 6	80,250,104	99.9998	200	0.0002	Carried	
Ordinary Resolution 7	79,795,104	99.9997	200	0.0003	Carried	
Ordinary Resolution 8	80,250,104	99.9998	200	0.0002	Carried	
Ordinary Resolution 9	80,250,104	99.9998	200	0.0002	Carried	
Ordinary Resolution 10	79,150,104	99.9997	200	0.0003	Carried	
Ordinary Resolution 11	78,695,104	99.9997	200	0.0003	Carried	
Ordinary Resolution 12	80,250,204	99.9999	100	0.0001	Carried	
Ordinary Resolution 13	80,250,104	99.9998	200	0.0002	Carried	
Ordinary Resolution 14	79,150,104	99.9997	200	0.0003	Carried	

18. <u>CLOSURE OF MEETING</u>

18.1 There being no further business to be transacted, the Meeting ended at 12.45 p.m. with a vote of thanks to the Chair.

ONFIRMED AS A CORRECT RECORD	
R CHAIRMAN	
ated:	

Questions And Answers in respect of Boilermech Holdings Berhad's 12th AGM held on 26 August 2022

No.	Questions Answers		
		prior	to AGM, and answered during AGM
1.	Overall, the Group performed well in FY2022 with a record revenue of RM317.8 million, up 33.9% year-on-year (YOY). However,	(a)	Steel prices has the most impact as it is the main raw material to build a boiler and also forms part of the construction of structure at the site.
	profit before tax (PBT) declined 23.7% to RM25.7 million, mainly due to lower contribution from the Bio-Energy segment. [page 17 of Annual Report (AR) 2022] (a) The Bio-Energy segment saw PBT decline 25.4% to RM18.2 million despite a		Our current book order is quite positive. The order book consists of projects secured over the past 18 to 24 months with varying commodity prices. Yes, the higher raw material cost is factored into the selling price during the contract signing process. However, when commodity prices spike during the project implementation phase after the contracts are signed, margins will inevitably be affected.
	40% growth in revenue to RM246.1 million. Which raw materials have the biggest impact on your cost structure?	(c)	Currently, we purchase our raw materials and lock the cost back-to-back for our projects wherever possible. However, there are other raw material components which are difficult or impractical to do so. Therefore, just like any other construction industry, our profit margins are still subject to the
	(b) What is the current outstanding order book for your Bio-Energy segment? How much of this order book is based on the latest (higher) cost structure? To what extent can you pass on the higher cost to your customers?	(d)	volatility of raw material prices. In FY2022, the average production capacity was 65% as there were delays due to Covid-19 issues. Under the current circumstances, we are targeting to operate at 70-80% of our capacity for FY2023.
	(c) What measures have you taken or plan to implement to mitigate the risk of sudden and huge rise in costs in the future? Put another way, would you be able to maintain the profit margins if the same situation happens again?		
	(d) What was the average utilisation rate for your boiler manufacturing plants in FY2022? What is the current utilisation rate and your target for FY2023?		

No.	. Questions		Answers		
2.	The Water Treatment segment	(a)	The ratio of trading to project revenue is		
	saw revenue increase 27.6%		approximately 50%:50% in FY2022.		
	YOY to RM37.4 million, achieving the second highest revenue since	(h)	Order book for Water Treatment is positive and		
	acquisition. The increase mainly	(0)	growing.		
	came from the project business		g.o.m.g.		
	unit as more projects were	(c)			
	carried out during the year while		Governance ("ESG") awareness and compliance,		
	the trading business unit had remained largely consistent.		this segment is set to grow over the next few years.		
	(page 21 of AR 2022)				
	(a) What is the typical revenue				
	mix for project business unit vs trading business unit?				
	vo trading business unit:				
	(b) What is the current				
	outstanding order book for				
	the Water Treatment segment?				
	segment:				
	(c) What is the outlook for this				
	segment over the next few				
	years?				
3.	The Solar Energy segment	(a)	Order book for Solar Energy slowed down in FY2022		
	recorded a 6.5% increase in	` ´	and for FY2023, the demand is recovering after the		
	revenue to RM34.3 million in		economy reopened.		
	FY2022, being the first full year of Solar Energy operations after the	(h)	We are targeting to exceed FY2022's order book.		
	acquisition in 2020. The segment	(5)	We are targeting to exceed 1 12022 3 order book.		
	contributed 10.8% of the Group's	(c)	We are targeting to increase the total contribution of		
	revenue for the year and 9.7% to		Solar Energy and Water Treatment to 40% to 45%.		
	the Group's PBT. (page 21 of AR 2022)				
	2022)				
	(a) What is the current				
	outstanding order book for				
	the Solar Energy business?				
	(b) What is your target order				
	book replenishment for				
	FY2023?				
	(c) What is your long torm torget				
	(c) What is your long-term target in terms of revenue				
	composition for Solar Energy				
	segment vs Bio-Energy and				
	Water Treatment segments?				

No.	Questions	Answers
4.	Gross margin reduced from 24.1% to 17.5% mainly due to rising commodity prices and the product mix for the main Bio-Energy segment this year which garner lower direct contribution.	(a) In FY2023, we expect partial recovery of gross margin but unlikely to achieve pre-Covid-19 level as our margins are still affected by the existing contracts with high raw material cost and produc mix.
	An increase in provision for doubtful debt and other expenses has also impacted the PBT which reduced from RM33.7 million to RM25.7 million. (page 20 of AR	(b) The provision for doubtful debt for FY2022 was RM1 million while there was a bad debt recovery in FY2021 of RM2 million which we managed to collect back resulting in a RM3 million variance in PBT.
	(a) Do you expect gross margin to recover back to pre-Covid-19 level of 24-26% in FY2023? If not, when?	The other expenses included a RM3.4 millior increase in general admin and staff cost as compared to FY2021 as the business operations and staffing increased post-Movement Control Orde ("MCO").
	(b) How much was the increase in provision for doubtful debt and other expenses in FY2022?	(c) After the completion of the Indonesia plan acquisition, we only expect minor capex for production facility upgrade.
	(c) What is the budgeted capex for FY2023? Please provide the breakdown of capex for each business segment.	
5.	In FY2020, the Group acquired a boiler manufacturing plant in Surabaya which commenced its operations in March 2021 after	(a) Our current staff level in Surabaya is sufficient for the orders that we have but we are still looking to increase the staff number in Indonesia.
	required licenses have been obtained. The plant increased its boiler fabrication capacity, facilitated faster response time to customers and lowered delivery and transportation costs as well as carbon footprint to reach end customers. (page 29 of AR 2022)	(b) We expect to ramp up production to more than 80% by FY2024.
	(a) How many workers have you employed for this plant? Do you plan to hire more workers this year?	
	(b) What is the current utilisation rate for this plant? When do you expect it to run at full capacity?	

No.	Questions	Answers
6.	The Group's Managing Director (MD), Mr. Chia Lik Khai is also an Executive Director of QL Resources Berhad. How does the Board ensure that the MD of the Company is able to stay focused and discharge his duties and responsibilities diligently, especially in such an uncertain and challenging business environment?	Mr Chia Lik Khai, as the MD, is tasked by the Board to manage the overall direction and strategic goals of the Company and he is capably assisted by the three respective heads of the three Business Units as well as a team of Group Functional Heads. The MD provides strategic direction for the Group as well as sets out and oversees the KPIs for the business units. The respective Heads of Business Unit are responsible for the day-to-day operations, driving business results and the implementation of strategies and policies. The MD is also supported by the specialised Group Functional Heads to implement corporate initiatives and matters such as risk management, sustainability, human and organisation, finance, IT, legal and performance reporting. To ensure effective management of the Group under uncertain and challenging business environment, MD and the senior management routinely and frequently review performance and adequacy of risk management practices and react to and deal with changes in a timely manner.
	Ougstions from Sharahaldara an	d MSWG's Representative as responded during AGM
1.	Referring to the answers to MSWG's questions presented by Mr Chia Lik Khai and enquiries on how much the gross margin is, going forward, and what is Boilermech's position, given the market information that the steel price is stabilized now.	Though the common steel's price has started to stabilize, Mr Chia Lik Khai ("Mr Chia") replied that its current price is still comparatively high. In view of the mixture of old and new projects, projects secured prior to December 2021 are likely to be affected by the steel price hike. However, the price increase of raw materials was factored in the projects subsequently and the actual profit margin will be reflected after the cost of projects normalized. At this juncture, Mr Gan Chih Soon ("Mr Gan"), the Executive Director was invited by Mr Chia to share more details on Management's action while facing the escalating raw materials price. Mr Gan informed that Management already started to lock in the raw material prices based on the projects in hand as well as making adjustment to selling price accordingly.
2.	Comparing the financial result of the 1st Quarter FY2022 Vs 1st Quarter FY2023, what measure is being taken to manage the high cost of operation?	 Mr Chia explained that the main reasons for the increase of overhead at the amount of RM6 million for the 1st Quarter FY2022 Vs 1st Quarter FY2023 are the following:- (i) higher net provision of doubtful debts (RM1 million) arising from slowdown in payment from customers/receivables. (ii) reversal of bad debts in FY2021 of RM2 million and the remaining RM3 million is due to the increase of OPEX.

No.	Questions	Answers
3.	What is the current level of bad debt expense?	Mr Chia responded that the provision of bad debts was mostly due to the delay in collections where customers did not pay when business activities slowed down.
		The Company's overall receivables has not increased from year on year though the provision was triggered, attributable to long outstanding aged debtors. Once payment is received from customers, a reversal would be made.
4.	What are the possibilities for recovery of profit margin among the three business segments?	Mr Chia said that the profit margin of Bio-Energy ("BE") Segment is expected to recover faster than the Water Treatment ("WT") and Solar Energy ("SE") Segments, as large scale projects are able to recover faster.
		SE Segment is still facing a competitive landscape, with the surge of cost of solar panels. As the market price of solar panels remain challenging, the profit margin of SE Segment might not improve in the short to medium term.
		WT Segment was not impacted much as the increase of cost of related materials was still manageable.
5.	As Mr Chia Lik Khai will become the MD of Boilermech Group, what is the business direction and KPIs set for the next three years?	Mr Chia replied that the key focus is to drive the overall growth for the Company which is divided into external (business) and internal growth: -
	THE 13 SECTION WILL HEART WILLIAM YEARS!	 External/ Business Growth To leverage the three core businesses which are positioned to support ESG growth for customers and stakeholders in Indonesia. To increase visibility of water treatment in industrial wastewater as well as for the food and beverages industry other than the palm oil industry. To strengthen the solar business in the Commercial & Industry and residential sectors.
		 Internal Growth Initiatives To build people and system which will allow the business to scale with the improved efficiency. To increase project execution efficiency, after sales deliveries and customers' satisfaction. To keep risk and sustainability initiatives on the radar.

No.	Questions	Answers
		Mr Adrian Chair added that the Board of Directors are also focusing on new areas of growth and the appropriate strategy for ESG-related initiatives. Management was advised to position the renewal energy as a holistic solution to customers while setting the internal key result areas (KRAs) in a broader spectrum. Mr Adrian Chair being the Chairman of Nomination Committee, emphasized the utmost importance of the Company's ability and capability to grow internally
		particularly grooming the technical/functioning talents into management/leadership roles in the near future.
6.	Having noted the order book reported for three Business Segments is positive, what is the quantum and position of the order	Mr Chia informed that it is the Company's policy not to disclose detailed information of order book to shareholders.
	book?	At the same time, he informed that "positive" mean that the order book is still growing.
		To the question asked on how positive the order book is, Mr Adrian Chair said such information is competitive and sensitive.
7.	What is the competitive edge of the solar business, given the fact that solar business is already competitive when Boilermech	Mr Chia said that Boilermech entered into the solar business through partnership in a relatively small size solar company.
	entered the solar business in 2020? How does the solar business compete with the larger industry players like Solarvest and Samaiden in terms of customers	Boilermech Group, with its readily available customer network and experience in managing company growth and long-term business plan with financial strength, is poised to drive the solar joint venture ("JV") entity to become a scalable player. In addition, the founder of the JV company, Mr Michael Leong, is also considered one of the pioneer players of the solar industry.
	and network?	From the technical perspective, he has hands-on experience in the technical solution, will be able to provide optimized solution to customers. Mr Michael will continue to build the solar business.

No.	Questions	Answers
8.	The utilisation rate for the boiler manufacturing plant for FY2023 is targeted at 70-80%. Is there any plan to expand the utilisation and	Mr Chia informed that there are two boiler manufacturing plants of which located in Subang Industrial Park (Malaysia) and Surabaya (Indonesia).
	what is the cost involved?	The Company's current focus is to achieve 70% - 80% utilization rate for Subang plant and to ramp up the production capacity of Surabaya plant to be the same capacity.
		For long-term planning, Management will look into the feasibility of locating the bigger plant, either in Malaysia or Indonesia, subject to a detailed study. As of now, the plant in Indonesia will serve as the second plant. If the investment strategy continues to be conducive and the Indonesia plant is fully utilized, Management will look into other alternatives going forward.
9.	Referring to credit risk – trade receivables (page 128 of Annual Report 2022), with the breakdown of debts past due for more than 120 days at approximately RM8.3 million (11.4%) out of the total trade receivables: - - Do you foresee any further impairment as impairment has been made for the 1 st quarter of FY2023? What is the recovery effort? - Was it due to the worsening credit risk of customers? - Any risk of customer concentration (single largest customer)?	Mr Chia responded that it is part of Management's continuing effort to reduce the amount of trade receivables. This outstanding debt was mainly due to challenges faced at the customers' sites, i.e. operations related matters, such as certain sites were delayed for project execution whereas technical issues with customers took time to be resolved, especially during the MCO period. As explained earlier, Mr Chia stressed that the amount of trade receivables due for more than 120 days was not caused by the worsening credit risk of customers. Boilermech is not at risk with customer concentration as it does have many customers.
10.	Delay in payment and some bad paymasters in general required close monitoring and follow-up with the customers.	(a) Mr Chia explained that the credit risk assessment/policy being applied for old and new customers could be different in payment term depending on their risk profile.
	 (a) What is the credit risk assessment employed by the Company? How does the Company handle the worst scenario? (b) Will Boilermech impose a personal guarantee for its non-listed corporate customers? 	(b) So far, Boilermech has not imposed a personal guarantee for its corporate customers.

No.	Questions	Answers
11.	Based on the presentation and explanation from Management earlier:- (a) Please clarify the provision of doubtful debts, accounting policy vs reality, and the trend in terms of exposure.	 (a) Mr Chia said that the accounting policy for provision of doubtful debts was based on certain statistics of the Company in the past and also by assessing the risk profile of the customers. On top of making the provision, Management also puts in effort on credit control, tightening terms during the contract signing. (b) Same as above.
	 (b) The Company's financial records showed the fluctuation in provisions of doubtful debts from time to time. What is the reality vs recommended accounting policy? (c) The Company's auditors and finance team are advised to consider the impact of the amount of provision for doubtful debts and inventory written off. Financial statements should be reflective of the actual result of the Company's business performance instead of impacted by a blanket provision. What is the main reason for the substantial amount of inventory written off? 	(c) Generally, boilers are made of durable steel in different shapes, sizes, thickness, etc. Mr Chia explained that the inventory written off were basically the slow-moving and aged products. Based on the said accounting policy, a reversal could be made in the event that the Company optimizes the inventory. Management is monitoring closely to ensure the inventories are usable from time to time.
12.	With the price increase for solar panels, how will Management manage and monitor the price of its key components?	Mr Michael Leong, the person in charge of the Solar Energy Segment, replied that the price of solar panels fluctuated substantially from end of year 2021 to early of year 2022 and has stabilized recently. Nevertheless, Management had put in place various methods in managing and monitoring the price of the key components of solar panel.
13.	Based on the presentation slide, Solar Energy Segment was moving into the large-scale projects, where the revenue was increased and profit was declined for FY2022. What is the Company's strategy and direction, going forward?	Mr Chia addressed that Management will continue to seize business opportunities besides enhancing the internal team's competency as well as strengthening the commercial risk management. Going forward, large-scale projects will still be considered while having prioritized the risk factors of the Company.

No.	Questions	Answers
14.	What is the long-term sustainability of Boilermech's business in providing boilers (parts) and services to the palm oil mills?	Mr Chia replied that Boilermech will continue to concentrate in providing engineering products in line with its long term sustainability plans.
15.	Reference is made to the list of properties stated in pages 155 to 156 of the Company's Annual Report 2022, where Return on Equity ("ROE") is computed at 6%. Can the ROE be improved if the assets of the Company are fully utilized?	Mr Chia explained that two pieces of land located in Malaysia and Indonesia had been purchased with the intention to build manufacturing plants in the long term. Management may consider to maximize the value of the excess land while staying focused on growing the existing business amid challenges.